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September 11, 2019

VIA HAND DELIVERY

Wanda 1. Santiago

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 1
5 Post Office Square

Suite 100, Mail Code ORC 4-6

Boston, MA 02109-3912

Re: In the Matter of Marmon Utility LLC,
Docket No. EPCRA-01-2019-0043

Dear Ms. Santiago:

Please accept for filing the original and one copy of a Consent Agreement and Final Order
(“CAFQ”) settling the above-captioned Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know
Act (“EPCRA”) enforcement action brought by Complainant EPA Region 1 against Respondent
Marmon Utility LLC at its electric cable manufacturing facility in Seymour, Connecticut.

The CATI'O has been executed by the parties and was signed by the Regional Judicial Officer on
September 11, 2019. Please note that this EPCRA enforcement action has no administrative
penalty complaint. Instead, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b), this CAFO has simultaneously
commenced and settled the action.

If you have any questions regarding the CAFO, please call me at (617) 918-1729. Thank you for
your assistance with this matter.

Steven J. Viggiani
Senio1 aforcement Counsel
EPA Region 1

Attachments (original and one copy)

cC: Pamela K. Elkow, Esq.
Carmody Torrance Sandak & Hennessey (via regular mail)



In the » "~ ~F M-~~~ T4y [ LC, Docket No. EPCRA-01-2019-0043

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that I hand-delivered to the office of the Regional Hearing Clerk of EPA

Region 1 the original and one copy of the final Consent Agreement and Final Order (“CAFO”) in
the above-captioned case, together with a cover letter, and arranged to send a copy of the CAFO
and letter via mail to Respondent at the address set forth below:

HAND-DELIVERY: (original and one copy)

Wanda 1. Santiago

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. EPA, Region 1

5 Post Office Square, Suite 100
Boston, Massachusetts 02109-3912

VIA FIRST CLASS MAIL:

Pamela K. Elkow

Counsel for Marmon Utility LLC
Carmody Torrance Sandak & Hennessey
707 Summer Street

Stamford, Connecticut 06901-1026

Date:

Senior Enforcement Counsel



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENC?

REGION |

)
IN THE MATTER OF )

)
Marmon Ultility LLLC ) Docket No: EPCRA-01-2019-0043
49 Day Street )
Scymour, Connecticut 06483, )

) CONSENT AGREEMENT

Respondent. ) AND FINAL ORDER

)
Proceeding under Section 325(c) of the )
Emergency Planning and Community )
Right-to-Know Act, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c) )

)

CONSENT AGREEMENT

The United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”), Region 1
(*Complainant™), alleges that Respondent Marmon Utility LL.C (“Respondent”) violated the
Emecrgency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (“EPCRA™), 42 U.S.C.

§§ 11001 - 11050, and the federal regulations promulgated thercunder.

Complainant and Respondent (together, the “Partics’™) agree that settiement of this matter
is in the public interest and that entry of this Consent Agreement and Final Order ("CAFO™)
without further litigation is the most appropriate mecans of resolving this matter. Pursuant to 40
C.F.R. § 22.13(b) of EPA’s Consolidated Rulcs of Practice Governing the Administrative
Assessment of Civil Penaltics and the Revocation/I'ermination or Suspension of Permits
(“Consolidated Rules™), set out at 40 C.F.R. Part 22, Complainant and Respondent agree to
simnultancously commence and settle this action by the issuance of this CAFO.

Thercfore, before any hearing, and without adjudication of any issuc of fact or law, the

Partics agree to comply with the terms of this CAFO as follows:
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1 STATUTORY.AND REGULATORY AUTHORITY

1. Pursuant to Sections 313 and 328 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 11023 and 11048,
IEPA promulgated Toxic Chemical Relcase Reporting: Community Right-to-Know regulations at
40 C.F.R. Part 372.

2. Section 313(a) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), rcquires owners or operators of
a facility subject to the requirements of Section 313(b) of EPCRA to submit annually, no later
than July | of each year, a Toxic Chemical Release Inventory Reporting Form, EPA Form
9350-1 (hereinafter, “Form R”), for each toxic chemical listed under 40 C.F.R. § 372.65 that was
manufactured, processed, or otherwise used during the preceding calendar year in quantities
exceeding the toxic chemical thresholds established under Section 313(f) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 11023(f), and 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.25 and 372.28. If the owner or operator determines that the
alternative reporting threshold specified in 40 C.F.R. § 372.27 applies, the owner or operator
may submit an alternative threshold certification statement that contains the information required
under 40 C.F.R. § 372.95 (the alternative threshold certification statement is also known as
“Form A”). Each Form R or Form A (hercinafier, referred to together as “TRI Forms™) is
required to be submitted to EPA and a designated state authority.

3. Scction 313(b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(b), and 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.22 and
372.30 provide that owners or operators of facilities that have 10 or more full-time employces;
that are in a Standard Industrial Classification (*S1C™) code or North American Industry
Classification System (“NAICS”) codc set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 372.23; and that manufactured,
processed, or otherwise used a toxic chemical listed under 40 C.F.R. § 372.65 in a quantity
cxceeding the established threshold during a calendar year, arc required to submit TRI Forms to

I:PA and the state authority for cach of these substances for that year.
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4, Section 325(cX1) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c)(1), the Federal Civil Penalties
Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990 as amended through 2016 (“FCPIAA”), and the FCPIAA's
implementing regulations as promulgated and updated by EPA at 40 C.F.R. Part 19 (most
rccently at 84 Fed. Reg. 2056, 2060 (Feb. 6, 2019)), together authorize the assessment of civil
administrative penalties of up 10 $57,317 for each violation of Section 313 of EPCRA that occurs
after November 2, 2015. Pursuant to Section 325(c)(3) of EPCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c)(3),
each day that an :PCRA Section 313 violation continues constitutes a separate violation.

1L GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

S. Respondent is a privately-held corporation organized under the laws of the State
of Dclaware.

6. Respondent owns and operates an electric power cable manufacturing facility at
49 Day Street, Seymour, Connecticut 06483 (the “Facility™).

7. At the Facility, Respondent manufactures medium and high voltage insulated
power cables. Copper, aluminum and steel wire are bound and braided, then sealed with
extruded vulcanized rubber (which contains lead oxide and zinc compounds) or other insulation
to make power cables. The Facility also melts and extrudes metallic lead for certain cable
coating opcrations.

8. On May 1. 2019, a duly authorized representative of EPA Region 1 conducted a
compliance evaluation inspection of the Facility to determine its compliance with EPCRA
reporting requirements.

9. Respondent is a “person” within the meaning of Section 329(7) of EPCRA, 42
U.S.C. § 11049(7).

10. Respondent owns and operatcs a “facility.” as that term is defined by Section

329(4) of EPCRA, 42 1J.8.C. § 11049(4), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.3.
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11.  The Facility has more than 10 “full-time employees,” as that term is defined by 40
C.F.R.§3723.

12. The I'acility is classified in a SIC code or NAICS code set forth in 40 C.I'.R.
§372.23.

13. During the calendar year 2017, Respondent’s Facility processed copper, which is
a toxic chemical listed under 40 C.F.R. § 372.65(a), in quantities greater than 25,000 pounds.

14. During the calendar year 2017, Respondent’s Facility processed one or more zinc
compounds, which is a toxic chemical category listed under 40 C.F.R. § 372.65(c), in quantities
greater than 25,000 pounds.

15. During calendar years 2016 and 2017, Respondent’s Facility processed lead and
one or more lcad compounds, which are toxic chemicals listed under 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.65(a) and
(¢), in quantities greater than 100 pounds.

16. The EPCRA TRI reporting threshold sct out at 40 C.F.R. § 372.25 for a facility
that processes copper and zine compounds is 25,000 pounds per year for cach chemical. The
EPCRA TRI reporting threshold set out at 40 C.F.R. § 372.28 for lead and lead compounds is
100 pounds per year for each chemical.

17. The requirements of Section 313 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023, apply to the
Iacility.

IIl.  VIOLATIONS

Count 1; Failure to Timely Submit and Certify
TRI Form for Copper for Calendar Year 2017

18. During the calendar year 2017. Respondent processed copper, a toxic chemical
listed under 40 C.F.R. § 372.65(a). at the Facility in quantitics more than ten times greater than

the 25.000 pound threshold amount established for EPCRA TRI reporting by 40 C.F.R. § 372.25.
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19. Respondent was therefore required to submit and certify a TR1 Form for this
chemical to EPA on or before July 1, 2018. See Section 313(a) of EPCRA, 40 C.F.R.
§§ 372.30(a) and (d), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.85(b)(2).

20. Respondent submitted and certified a TRI FForm for the Facility's copper to EPA
on April 29, 2019.

21, Respondent failed to submit and certify this TRI Form to EPA on or before July 1,
2018.

22. Respondent’s failure to timely submit and certify this TRI Form for copper was in
violation of Section 313 of EPCRA and 40 C.¥.R. Part 372.

Count 2: Failurc to Timely Submit and Certify TRI
Form for Zinc Compounds for Calendar Ycar 2017

23. During the calendar yeér 2017, Respondent processed one or more zinc

compounds, a toxic chemical category listed under 40 C.F.R. § 372.65(c), at the Facility in
quantities more than ten times greater than the 25.000 pound threshold amount established for
EPCRA TRI reporting by 40 C.F.R. § 372.25.

24. Respondent was thercfore required to submit and certify a TRI Form for this
chemical category to EPA on or before July 1, 2018. See Section 313(a) of EPCRA, 40 C.F.R.
§§ 372.30(a) and (d), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.85(b)2).

25. Respondent submitted and certified a TRI Form for the Facility’s zinc compounds
to EPA on April 29, 2019.

26. Respondent failed to submit and certify this TRI Form to EPA on or before July 1,
2018.

27. Respondent's failure to timely submit and certify this TR1 Forin was in violation

of Section 313 of EPCRA and 40 C.F.R. Part 372.
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Count 3: Failure to Timely Submit and Certify TRI
Form for Lead Compounds for Calendar Year 2017

28.  During the calendar year 2017, Respondent processed lcad and one or more lead

compounds, which are toxic chemicals and toxic chemical compounds listed under 40 C.F.R. §§
372.65(a) and (c), respectively, at the Facility in quantities more than ten times greater than the
100 pound threshold amount established for EPCRA TRI reporting by 40 C.F.R. § 372.28.

29. Respondent was therefore required to submit and certify a TRI Form for these
chemical categories 1o EPA on or before July 1, 2018. See Section 313(a) of EPCRA, 40 C.F.R.
§§ 372.30(a) and (d), and 40 C.I*.R. § 372.85(b)(2).

30.  Respondent submitted and certified a TR1 Form for the Facility’s lead and lead
compounds to EPA on April 29, 2019,

31. Respondent failed to submit and certify this TRI Form to EPA on or before July 1,
2018.

32. Respondent’s failure 1o timely submit and certify this TRI Form was in violation
of Section 313 of EPCRA and 40 C.F.R. Part 372.

IV. TERMS OF SETTLEMENT

33. Respondent certifies that it has corrected the alleged violations cited in this CAFO
and will operate its Facility in compliance with Section 313 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023, and
the regulations promulgated thereunder at 40 C.F.R. Part 372.

34. Respondent admits, for the purposes of this proceeding, that Complainant has
jurisdiction over the subject matter alleged in this CAFQO and that this CAFQ states claims upon
which rclief may be granted against Respondent. Respondent waives any defenses it might have

as to jurisdiction and venue.
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35. Respondent waives its right to a judicial or administrative hearing on any issuc of
law or fact set forth in this CAFO and waives its right to appeal the Final Order.

36. Without admitting or denying the facts and violations alleged in Section III of this
CAKO, Respondent consents to the terms and issuance of this CAFO and agrees to the payment
of the civil penalty sct forth herein. The provisions of this CAFO shall be binding on
Respondent and Respondent’s officers, directors, agents, employces, successors and assigns.

37. Pursuant to the relevant factors for penalties issued pursuant to Section 325(c)(1)
of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c)(1), and taking into account any such matters as justice may
require, Complainant has detcrmined that it is fair and proper that Respondent pay a total civil
penalty in the amount of seventy-five thousand dollars ($75,000) to resolve the violations alleged
in Section 111 of this CAFO.

38. Within thirty (30) days after the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent shall
submit a company, bank, cashier’s, or certified check in the amount of $75,000, payablc to the
order of' the “I'rcasurer, United States of America.” The check should be sent via regular mail
10:

U.S. EPA
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000
or. Respondent may make payment by electronic funds transfer via:
Federal Reserve Bank of New York
ABA = 021030004
Account = 68010727
SWIFT Address = FRNYUS33
33 Liberty Street
New York, NY 10045

Ficld Tag 4200 of the Fedwirc message should read:
“D 68010727 Lnvironmental Protection Agency™
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Respondent shall include the case name and docket number (“In the Matter of Marmon Ultility
L.LC, Docket No. EPCRA-01-2019-0043"") on the face of the check or wire transfer
confirmation. In addition, at the time of payment, Respondent shall simultaneously send notice
of the payment and a copy of the check or electronic wire transfer confirmation to:

Wanda I. Santiago

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region |

5 Post Office Square, Suite 100

Mail Code ORC 4-6

Boston, MA 02109-3912

and

Steven J. Viggiani

Senior Enforcement Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 1

5 Post Officc Square, Suite 100

Mail Code ORC 4-3

Boston, MA 02109-3912

39, Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on

debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a
delinquent claim. In the event that Respondent docs not fully pay the civil penalty required by
Paragraphs 34 and 35 of this CAFO when due, the unpaid penalty shall be payable with accrued
interest from the original due date to the datc of payment, with the interest calculated at the rate
established in accordance with 31 C.F.R. § 901.9(b)2). A charge will be assessed to cover the
costs of debt collection, including processing and handling costs and attorneys” fees. In addition,
a penalty charge of six percent per year, compounded annually, will be assessed on any portion
of the debt which remains delinquent more than ninety (90) days after payment is due, with the
charge accruing from the date of delinquency in accordance with 31 C.I°.R. § 901.9(d). In any

such collection action, the validity, amount and appropriateness of the penalty shall not be

subject to review.,
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40.  The civil penalty under this CAFQ and any interest, nonpayment penalties, and
other charges paid pursuant to any penalty collection action arising {from this CAFO, shall
represent penalties assessed by EPA within the meaning of 26 U.S.C. § 162(f) and shall not be
deductible for purposes of fcderal, state, or local taxes. Accordingly, Respondent agrees to treat
all payments made pursuant to this CAFO as penalties within the meaning of 26 C.F.R.

§ 1.162-21, and further agrees not to use these payments in any way as, or in furtherance of, a tax
deduction under federal, state, or local law.

41.  This CAFO constitutes a settlcment by EPA of all claims for civil penalties
pursuant to Section 325(c) of EPCRA for the violations specifically alleged in Section 111 of this
CAFO. Compliance with this CAFO shall not be a defense to any actions subsequently
commenced pursuant to federal laws and regulations administered by EPA, and it is the
responsibility of Respondent to comply with such laws and regulations. This CAFO in no way
relieves Respondent or its employees of any criminal liability. Nothing in this CAFO shall be
construed to limit the authority of the United States to undertake any action against Respondent
in response to conditions which may present an imminent and substantial endangerment to the
public.

42. Nothing in this CAFO shall be construed as prohibiting, altering, or in any way
limiting the ability of EPA to seek any other remedies or sanctions if Respondent is in violation
of this CAFO or continues to be in violation of the statutes and regulations upon which the
allegations in this CAFO are based, or if Respondent violates any other applicable provision of
federal, state, or local law.

43. Fach of the undersigned representatives of the Parties certifics that he or she is
fully authorized by the party responsible to enter into the terms and conditions of this CAFO and

to cxecute and legally bind that Party to it.
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44. LEach Party shall bear its own costs and attorneys® fees in this proceeding and
specifically waives any right to recover such costs pursuant to the Equal Access to Justice Act,
5 U.S.C. § 504, or other applicable laws.

45.  The terms, conditions, and compliance requirements of this CAFO may not be
modified or amended except upon the written agreement of the Parties and approval of the
Regional Judicial Officer.

46. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.31(b), the effective date of this CAFO is the

datc on which this CAFO is filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk.

For COMPLLAINANT:

&-% S?J (e, 2ot

Karen McGuire, Director
Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division
EPA Region 1
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In the Matter of Marmon Utility LI.C, Docket No. EPCRA-01-2019-0043
Consent Agrecement and Final Order

For RESPONDENT:

(Z}‘[Q t}/zm[ﬁ‘%u{ﬂ ({/ € //7

Angelo Santamaria Date
Vice President, General Manager — Power Cable
Marmon Ultility LLC
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FINAL ORDER
Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.18(b) and (c) of the Consolidated Rules, the foregoing
Consent Agreement resolving this matter is incorporated by reference into this Final Order and is
hereby ratified. Respondent Marmon Utility LLC is ordered to pay the civil penalty amount
specified in the Consent Agreement in the manner indicated therein. The terms of the Consent
Agrcement shall become effective on the date that the CAFQ is filed with the Regional Hearing

Clerk.

Z o /ﬂw’M j}L/
LeAnn Jensen uuz Date -
m‘ﬁmﬂn’g Regional Midicial Officer

EPA Region |
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